
MAY 13, 2014  PAGE 1 

BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS  
TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

SIERRA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
 
TUESDAY 11:00 a.m. MAY 13, 2014 
 
PRESENT: 

David Humke, Chairman 
Bonnie Weber, Vice Chairperson 

Marsha Berkbigler, Commissioner 
Vaughn Hartung, Commissioner 

Kitty Jung, Commissioner 
 

Nancy Parent, County Clerk 
John Slaughter, County Manager 

Paul Lipparelli, Legal Counsel 
Charles Moore, Fire Chief 

 
 The Board convened at 11:30 a.m. in regular session in the Commission 
Chambers of the Washoe County Administration Complex, 1001 East Ninth Street, Reno, 
Nevada, and conducted the following business: 
 
14-63F AGENDA ITEM 2 
 
Agenda Subject: "Public Comment. Comment heard under this item will be limited 
to three minutes per person and may pertain to matters both on and off the 
Commission agenda. The District will also hear public comment during individual 
action items, with comment limited to three minutes per person. Comments are to 
be made to the District as a whole. " 
 
 There was no response to the call for public comment. 
 
 The following agenda item No. 5 will be heard by the Washoe County 
Board of Commissioners who will convene as the Board of County Commissioners and 
the Board of Fire Commissioners for the Sierra Fire Protection District and the 
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District.  
 
14-64F AGENDA ITEM 5  
 
Agenda Subject: "Presentation, discussion and possible action to accept a report 
from the Blue Ribbon Committee on Regional Fire Services. (All Commission 
Districts)." 
  
 Fire Chief Charles Moore stated that the Blue Ribbon Committee (BRC) 
worked tirelessly over the past nine months and noted there were several BRC members 
present.  
 



PAGE 2  MAY 13, 2014 

 Don Givins, Emergency Services Consulting International (ESCI) Sr. 
Associate, and Sarah Chvilicek, BRC Chairperson, conducted a PowerPoint presentation, 
which was placed on file with the Clerk. The presentation highlighted the tasks of the 
BRC, the regional agencies involved, and the 10 key findings which included: fire agency 
boundaries were efficient; how fiscal constraints impact service; how staffing and 
risk/cost were disconnected; how non-standardized response protocols lead to greater 
expense; how efficiency and effectiveness were sacrificed for local control; volunteers 
should not be separate and autonomous; personnel and labor agreements could negate 
efficiencies; grants were a necessary, but unreliable revenue stream; numerous system 
improvements were available; and, miscellaneous issues, opportunities, challenges, the 
four regional options, and the BRC recommendations.  
 
 Commissioner Berkbigler asked if discussions surrounding response status 
were occurring with the Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority (REMSA). 
John Slaughter, County Manager, replied that response status related to Emergency 
Medical Services (EMS) information was discussed in the TriData Report. Commissioner 
Berkbigler was concerned because the Reno Fire Department (RFD) and the Sparks Fire 
Department (SFD) did not participate in the BRC. She felt the RFDs browned-out 
stations could directly impact the County's fire services. She asked if this report was 
being provided to the regional partners. Mr. Slaughter stated that had not been discussed, 
but the report could be provided to other partners. Commissioner Berkbigler stated there 
was nothing more important than ensuring that citizens were safe from fires.  
 
 Commissioner Hartung was concerned about the Legislature forcing 
regionalization. He said the report outlined many key features that could lead to a greater 
spirit of cooperation. He asked if the Peak Activity Units (PAUs) compared to the system 
currently used by REMSA. Mr. Givins replied that the systems were not significantly 
different. He said REMSA used a Systems Status Management where locations were 
statistically identified where the call volumes typically occurred. He commented that 
EMS was very human-activity driven, making it predictable; however, fire was less 
predictable. He explained that the fire service did not lend itself to a pure implementation 
of a Systems Status Management or fixed posting locations. Commissioner Hartung 
understood how the PAUs worked with EMS and how fire responded, but he was unclear 
as to how that would be applied directly to fire. Mr. Givins stated that PAUs should not 
be used as part of the foundational response capability. The foundational response 
capability needed to assume the fire risks that existed throughout the Community and the 
resources needed to be deployed in a manner that provided a critical mass for those 
resources to arrive in time to affect a change.  
 
 Commissioner Weber suggested a community-wide meeting to present the 
report, and then return to the respective entities to work together and arrive at the 
recommendations.  
 
 Chairman Humke commented that many reports had been completed. He 
said they should all be sent to the Legislative Counsel Bureau (LCB) to educate them on 
the issues since they were not hesitant about delving into local government. He also 



MAY 13, 2014  PAGE 3 

hoped to stifle the discussions that all local governments did was fight and bicker. He 
said he was proud of the County and how the County approached fire services and 
consolidation. Chairman Humke suggested that the report be presented to the Citizen 
Advisory Boards (CABs), Neighborhood Advisory Boards (NABs), the Community 
Advisory Board and Homeowners Associations (HOAs), which he felt would be better 
than a community-wide meeting. Ms. Chvilicek replied that the BRC was prepared to 
make presentations to all those associations. Chairman Humke thanked each of the BRC 
members. 
 
 Commissioner Jung said Finding No. 3 stated that staffing was not 
National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 1710 compliant and/or sustainable. She 
asked what that meant and to what agency did it reference. Mr. Givins replied that 
comment referred to the region and not one particular agency. He explained that NFPA 
1710 was a consensus standard adopted in 2001, which identified optimum response 
times in intervals and optimum staffing levels by unit. He said some agencies in the 
County were closer than others, but there seemed to be a correlation between the 
closeness and the lack of sustainability. Commissioner Jung said Finding No. 3 also 
stated a lack of balance between an accepted level of risk and an acceptable cost of 
protection. Mr. Givins explained if an organization made a conscience decision that it 
would not try to achieve a NFPA 1710 because it was not affordable, there would have to 
be some standard that guided the organization in terms of staffing and deployment of 
resources. He said there should be an evaluation of the risk and the cost, which could 
vary from community-to-community, based on the risk and the tax base. It required the 
elected officials to have a clear understanding of the risks in their community and costs of 
providing service to mitigate those risks. From that, he said the community needed to be 
educated about the risks and the costs associated with mitigating those risks.  
 
 Commissioner Jung asked for an explanation on Finding No. 4. Mr. Givins 
stated that was the duplication of capital assets and infrastructure. Commissioner Jung 
asked if each of the participants contributed money to the HazMat Team. Chief Moore 
replied that they participated in funding and contributions of material, training and 
personnel. Commissioner Jung asked if the contributions were equal and who were the 
participants. Chief Moore replied that the participants were the Cities of Reno and Sparks 
and the County and not proportionate; however, it was an agreement to contribute their 
expertise. Commissioner Jung asked if the volunteers were a liability for the taxpayers in 
terms of legal and financial liabilities. Mr. Givins said there was a gap with the 
participation in the volunteer training programs, but by assimilating the volunteer 
programs into a combined TMFPD/SFPD, the opportunity would be there to train 
everyone to the same standard and expect performance to be at the same standard. 
Commissioner Jung questioned tax equalization that was listed under the challenges. Mr. 
Givins explained if a regional effort required tax equalization, as in any regional effort 
some citizens would pay more than others, which would be a subsidy issue and would 
need to be addressed. Commissioner Jung asked if a dedicated revenue source was 
discussed for other entities if they regionalized. Ms. Chvilicek replied that was discussed 
at length. She commented there needed to be transparency so taxpayers knew where their 
money went in order to make an informed decision on the type of protection they desired. 



PAGE 4  MAY 13, 2014 

Commissioner Jung stated that any partners would need to have a dedicated revenue 
source. She asked how Mutual or Automatic Aid Agreements could be equalized. Mr. 
Givins replied that automatic aid was discussed, but could potentially hurt other agencies 
with financial impacts, or if there were wide disparities in automatic aid that an annual 
true-up could complete.  
 
 Commissioner Jung inquired how the County could be established as a 
Fire Adaptive Community and suggested that topic be placed on a future Board agenda. 
Mr. Givins stated there was a process to establish a Fire Adaptive Community outlined 
on the University of Nevada, Reno (UNR) Cooperative Extension website. He said the 
U.S. Forest Service also had information listed on their website on forming a Fire 
Adaptive Community. Commissioner Jung commented that incentives needed to be 
created for residents in frontier/rural areas of the County. 
 
 Commissioner Hartung said the NFPA suggested that many agencies 
across the nation were understaffed and asked on the percentage of fire calls versus EMS 
calls. Mr. Givins replied that the average ran between 75 and 80 percent for EMS calls 
nationally, but he did not have the data for the County. He said the region needed to be 
treated as a system and not as independent silos since that was not cost effective. 
Commissioner Hartung said a BRC recommendation was to combine the TMFPD and the 
SFPD and acknowledged that had been attempted. Chief Moore said that was correct and 
noted he was currently working with legal counsel. He explained that the TMFPD and the 
SFPD operated as one fire department.             
 
  Commissioner Weber remarked that County Legislators would be moving 
forward with a recommendation at the Legislature in regard to fire services. She believed 
that a community-wide meeting needed to be held for all citizens to have the opportunity 
to hear the information and the facts at the same time.  
 
 In response to the call for public comment, Debra Sheltra thanked the 
BRC for their work and dedication. She suggested the Board take a proactive approach 
and have a Bill Draft Request (BDR) ready for the next Legislative Session since the bill 
at the last session to combine the TMFPD and the SFPD never made it to a hearing. 
 
 William Steward spoke on combining all public safety mechanisms such 
as fire, police and REMSA. He said conversations were a big part of the equation and 
also to create public relations to cover public safety. 
 
 Commissioner Hartung acknowledged that Mr. Steward, who is a 
firefighter with the TMFPD, attended to an individual who became ill during the National 
Day of Prayer celebration at the County Complex. He said Chief Moore also coordinated 
first aid efforts on the individual. 
 
 J. Edward Parker stated that the TMFPD was an excellent organization. 
He spoke on the history of fires in the area and a ballot proposition to consolidate fire 



MAY 13, 2014  PAGE 5 

services. He urged the Board to move forward with a consolidated fire agency that would 
be governed by an independent fire service.    
 
12:52 p.m.  Commissioner Weber temporarily left the meeting. 
 
 Chief Moore said he was proud of the BRC and noted they remained 
independent, nonpartisan and analytical throughout the entire process.    
 
 On motion by Commissioner Berkbigler, seconded by Commissioner 
Hartung, which motion duly carried with Commissioner Weber absent, it was ordered 
that Agenda Item 5 be accepted.  
 
 * * * * * * * * * *  
 
 Later in the meeting, Commissioner Weber affirmed her acceptance of the 
report. 
 
14-65F AGENDA ITEM 4A 
 
Agenda Subject: "Fire Chief Report – A) TMFPD Kids Fire Camp 2014. 
 
 Captain Scott Stevenson gave an overview of the Truckee Meadows Fire 
Protection District (TMFPD) Kids Fire Camp 2014. He explained that the Camp was a 
joint effort between Local 3895, the District and Washoe County Parks. He said it was a 
three-day, two-night camp held at Camp We-Che-Me and open to all 11 to 14 year olds 
who were County residents. He explained the activities that would be covered and that 
the application fee may be covered or greatly reduced by donations and scholarships.     
 
12:58 p.m.  Commissioner Weber returned. 
 
 There was no action taken or public comment on this item.  
 
14-66F AGENDA ITEM 13 
 
Agenda Subject: "Possible Closed Session pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose 
of discussing with management representatives labor matters and negotiations." 
 
1:05 p.m.  On motion by Commissioner Weber, seconded by Commissioner Jung, 

which motion duly carried, it was ordered that the meeting recess to a 
closed session for the purpose of discussing with management 
representatives labor matters and negotiations.  

 
4:55 p.m.  The Board returned with Commissioners Jung and Berkbigler absent. 
 
 
 
 



PAGE 6  MAY 13, 2014 

14-67F AGENDA ITEM 3A  
 
Agenda Subject: "Approval of minutes from Board of Fire Commissioners meetings 
of March 25 and April 8, 2014." 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Weber, seconded by Commissioner Hartung, 
which motion duly carried with Commissioners Berkbigler and Jung absent, it was 
ordered that Agenda Item 3A be approved.   
 
14-68F AGENDA ITEM 4B 
 
Agenda Subject: "Fire Chief Report – B) Update on the Mogul Fire Station #35." 
 
 Fire Chief Charles Moore submitted and reviewed a summary of the 
Mogul Fire Station Development costs, which was placed on file with the Clerk.  
 
 Chief Moore read an e-mail thanking the District for their Ash Can 
Program that stated it was a wonderful program and much appreciated. He noted that the 
cans also served as a resource to place oily rags in water after their use to avoid 
spontaneous combustion.  
 
5:03 p.m.  Commissioner Berkbigler returned to the meeting. 
 
 There was no action taken or public comment on this item. 
 
 The following agenda item No. 6 will be heard by the Washoe County 
Board of Commissioners who will convene as the Board of County Commissioners and 
the Board of Fire Commissioners for the Sierra Fire Protection District and Truckee 
Meadows Fire Protection District.  
 
14-69F AGENDA ITEM 6  
 
Agenda Subject: "Discussion, possible action or direction to staff on a plan for the 
use of automatic aid to provide assistance to neighboring fire agencies. (Requested 
by Commissioner Hartung)."  
  
 Fire Chief Charles Moore explained that a fee schedule was imbedded in 
the Annual Operating Plan (AOP) with the U.S. Forest Service, the Bureau of Land 
Management (BLM) and most of the other neighboring agencies. He indicated when an 
extended and protracted incident occurred that fee schedule was used to base the costs.  
 
 Commissioner Hartung clarified that this item was also requested by 
Chairman Humke. 
 



MAY 13, 2014  PAGE 7 

 Chairman Humke said it was difficult to quantify costs. He indicated that 
he received e-mails stating it may not be lawful to grant services to another entity.  
 
 Commissioner Berkbigler felt that automatic aid should be done; however, 
questions had been raised if it was legal to offer automatic aid to the City of Reno if they 
did not reciprocate automatic aid back to the County. She asked if the proposal would 
offer free aid for a six month period. 
 
 Chairman Humke explained that his intent was for an experiment without 
billing the City for six months. Commissioner Hartung concurred. He said it was 
important to understand the number of priority medical calls and the overall call volume. 
He suggested maintaining a record on the calls the County responded to during the six 
months as well as a record on the value of the calls. It was incumbent on the County to 
assist the City and ensure that the citizens of Washoe County had the best service that 
could be offered.   
 
5:10 p.m.  Commissioner Jung returned to the meeting. 
 
 Paul Lipparelli, Legal Counsel, said the County, the Fire Districts and the 
Cities had fairly broad powers to enter interlocal agreements by which they agreed to 
perform work for one another or exchange services on terms that both entities felt were 
fair and reasonable. However, the property taxpayers within the District would be paying 
taxes into the District's budget that would provide services to another government entity 
that was not paying those taxes. After a certain point, he said that would become 
inequitable and potentially cause a claim by a resident in the Fire District that they were 
subsidizing another government's services without the benefit of a mutually, beneficial, 
bilateral agreement. He explained that the "Public Duty Doctrine" stated once a 
government agency publically represented that a certain emergency-type service was 
available from that government, people had a right to rely on that service. Mr. Lipparelli 
said if the County wanted to enter into an agreement with the City of Reno to provide 
automatic aid at no cost for a period of time to gather data, it would be a legally, 
enforceable contract. He did not believe the Board would breach the Public Duty 
Doctrine. If such an agreement was left in place for a longer period of time, and then the 
County decided not to continue the services, it would have to be done carefully so 
citizens that relied on those services would not miss them when they were no longer 
offered.  
 
 Chairman Humke said the General Fund could be used to reimburse the 
District for the six month period for their services, or collect funds from the City's 
taxpayers since they were being benefitted.  
 
 Chief Moore explained there were existing provisions in the Mutual Aid 
Agreement that could virtually produce the same result, which required a call to dispatch 
from a Reno Battalion Chief to dispatch a unit from the District; however, that response 
time would not be as fast as automatic aid. In order to have automatic aid up and running, 
he explained there would have to be certain programming changes in dispatch enabling 



PAGE 8  MAY 13, 2014 

the dispatcher the ability to see that two calls had to be made, one to the City and one to 
the District.  
 
 Commissioner Berkbigler asked if that mutual aid was already in place. 
Chief Moore replied that agreement was in place with no restrictions on either entity 
making those calls. Commissioner Berkbigler remarked since the City was on the verge 
of browning-out four key stations for wildland fires, she asked if the District had the 
ability to quickly cover those areas in the event of a large wildland fire. Chief Moore felt 
that coverage could occur quickly. Commissioner Berkbigler inquired on the data already 
being collected on calls. Chief Moore clarified that data on mutual aid was being 
collected, as defined by the National Fire Incident Recording System; however, it was 
different than what the City defined as their mutual aid responses. Commissioner 
Berkbigler questioned if that information on gathering the mutual aid information could 
be changed, which would help her determine if automatic aid would need to be further 
pursued. She said an argument that kept resurfacing stated that the City provided more 
mutual aid to the County than the County provided to the City.  Chief Moore felt that was 
untrue because on a mutual aid basis the number of times the County had called the City 
was roughly proportional to the number of times the City had called the County. 
Commissioner Berkbigler said she had faith in the Chief and the District's firefighters, 
but if the data were present it would be easier to determine the future.      
 
 Commissioner Hartung suggested directing the Chief to extend automatic 
and mutual aid directly to the City Council for the browned-out stations.   
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner 
Berkbigler, which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Chief Moore be given 
permission to offer automatic and mutual aid to the Reno City Council for the browned-
out Fire Stations to include a six month timeframe as an initial test period. 
 
 The following agenda item No. 7 will be heard by the Washoe County 
Board of Commissioners who will convene as the Board of Fire Commissioners for the 
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District. 
 
14-70F AGENDA ITEM 7  
 
Agenda Subject: "Discussion and action on the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection 
District Tentative Budget for Fiscal Year 2014-15 and direct staff to return at the 
Final Budget Hearing set for May 19, 2014."  
 
 Fire Chief Charles Moore conducted a PowerPoint presentation, which 
was placed on file with the Clerk. The presentation highlighted the financial overview, 
the service level improvements, Sun Valley – Station 15 engine replacement, Water 
Tenders, Brush Engines and volunteer facility improvements. 
 
 Commissioner Hartung asked if it would be wise to add an additional 
reserve firefighter to the Bowers Station. Chief Moore replied that the best use for the 
reservists would be at the Mogul Station and Hidden Valley. Commissioner Hartung 



MAY 13, 2014  PAGE 9 

asked if there were any stations that did not have paramedics. Chief Moore responded 
that the District had paramedics at all of their stations.  
 
5:40 p.m.  Commissioner Hartung temporarily left the meeting. 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Berkbigler, seconded by Commissioner 
Weber, which motion duly carried with Commissioner Hartung absent, it was ordered 
that Agenda Item 7 be accepted and directed.  
 
 The following agenda item No. 8 will be heard by the Washoe County 
Board of Commissioners who will convene as the Board of Fire Commissioners for the 
Sierra Fire Protection District. 
 
14-71F AGENDA ITEM 8  
 
Agenda Subject: "Discussion and action on the Sierra Fire Protection District 
Tentative Budget for Fiscal Year 2014-15 and direct staff to return at the Final 
Budget Hearing set for May 19, 2014." 
 
 Fire Chief Charles Moore said the Sierra Fire Protection District (SFPD) 
collected their tax revenues and paid the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District 
(TMFPD) for services within their District.  
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
5:44 p.m.  Commissioner Hartung returned. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Berkbigler, seconded by Commissioner 
Weber, which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 8 be accepted and 
directed.   
 
14-72F AGENDA ITEM 9  
 
Agenda Subject: "Approve the purchase of fifty-four (54) P25 compliant 800 MHz 
hand held radios at an estimated cost of $148,418 from Daily-Wells 
Communications Inc., 3440 E. Houston Street, San Antonio, Texas 78219. (All 
Commission Districts)." 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Weber, seconded by Commissioner Hartung, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 9 be approved.  
 
 
 



PAGE 10  MAY 13, 2014 

14-73F AGENDA ITEM 10  
 
Agenda Subject: "Approval and acceptance of a grant award, on behalf of the 
following (11) Volunteer Fire Departments: Cold Springs, Lemmon Valley, 
Palomino Valley, South Valley, Silver Lake, Wadsworth, Galena, Verdi, Red Rock, 
Gerlach, and Peavine, from the Nevada Division of Forestry Volunteer Fire 
Assistance Grant Program of fifty-five (55) Digital Handheld Bendix King DPH 
5102X radios valued at $88,803 to include an in-kind services match of 10% 
provided through wildland training hours completed by Truckee Meadows Fire 
Protection District and direct Finance Department to make any appropriate budget 
adjustments. (All Commission Districts)."   
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Weber, seconded by Commissioner Hartung, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 10 be approved and directed. 
 
14-74F AGENDA ITEM 11  
 
Agenda Subject: "Approval of a Cooperative Fire Protection Agreement and 
corresponding Annual Operating Plan for Cooperative Fire Protection Agreement 
between Bureau of Land Management, Carson City District Office, Winnemucca 
District Office and Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District." 
 
 Commissioner Hartung asked if this item would negate the contract with 
the Nevada Division of Forestry. Fire Chief Charles Moore explained that it would not 
negate nor change the contract. 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Weber, seconded by Commissioner 
Berkbigler, which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 11 be approved. 
The Cooperative Fire Protection Agreement for same is attached hereto and made a part 
of the minutes thereof.   
 
14-75F AGENDA ITEM 12  
 
Agenda Subject: "Recommendation to accept a grant award from the Nevada 
Division of Emergency Management (DEM) in the amount of $29,415 for the 
purpose of providing a regional Incident Command course in Washoe County and 
direct Finance Department to make any appropriate budget adjustments. (All 
Commission Districts)." 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 



MAY 13, 2014  PAGE 11 

 On motion by Commissioner Weber, seconded by Commissioner 
Berkbigler, which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 12 be accepted 
and directed.  
 
14-76F AGENDA ITEM 14  
 
Agenda Subject: "Commissioners’/Chief’s Announcements, requests for 
information and identification of topics for future agendas. (No discussion among 
Commissioners or action will take place on this item.)" 
 
 There were no Board member comments. 
 
14-77F AGENDA ITEM 15  
 
Agenda Subject: "Public Comment. Comment heard under this item will be limited 
to three minutes per person and may pertain to matters both on and off the 
Commission agenda. The District will also hear public comment during individual 
action items, with comment limited to three minutes per person. Comments are to 
be made to the District as a whole. " 
 
 There was no response to the call for public comment. 
 
 * * * * * * * * * * * 
 
 ADJOURNMENT 
 
5:50 p.m. There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting 
was adjourned from the closed session.  
 
 
 
            
  DAVID E. HUMKE, Chairman 

Truckee Meadows Fire Protection 
District and Sierra Fire Protection 
District 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
NANCY PARENT, Washoe County Clerk 
and Ex-Officio Clerk, Truckee Meadows 
Fire Protection District and Sierra Fire  
Protection District 
 
Minutes Prepared By: 
Stacy Gonzales, Deputy County Clerk  
 


























































	BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS
	TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
	14-63F AGENDA ITEM 2
	14-64F AGENDA ITEM 5
	14-65F AGENDA ITEM 4A
	14-66F AGENDA ITEM 13
	Agenda Subject: "Possible Closed Session pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of discussing with management representatives labor matters and negotiations."
	14-67F AGENDA ITEM 3A
	14-68F AGENDA ITEM 4B
	14-69F AGENDA ITEM 6
	14-70F AGENDA ITEM 7
	14-71F AGENDA ITEM 8
	14-72F AGENDA ITEM 9
	14-73F AGENDA ITEM 10
	14-74F AGENDA ITEM 11
	14-75F AGENDA ITEM 12
	14-76F AGENDA ITEM 14
	14-77F AGENDA ITEM 15
	Stacy Gonzales, Deputy County Clerk



